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This proverb can help to find a good move. Ask yourself where you would play if you were to be your opponent. The proverb extends to tactical and strategic issues.
In the top right, we see White make life for her group. Even without knowledge of eyeshapes, Black can apply the proverb as in the lower right to kill White. In life and death the key point is called the vital point.
White's ideal extension is shown in the lower left. Black can apply the proverb in the upper left, though a is an even more severe play.
Your move need not always be exactly the same move as he would have played. Rather, it often is a move in the same general area. Still, one can often settle the issue of who gets a key point simply by occupying it yourself.
A move that is not large for your opponent is often not large for you either. Even though this kind of move might be sente, it is not necessarily worth playing out.
In a symmetrical position, there is a play on the point of symmetry.
Many symmetrical positions have asymmetrical solutions, so this proverb should only be taken as a suggestion for where to look. A straightforward translation of the proverb:
This Go proverb applies to tactical questions regarding life and death of groups, but also sometimes to more strategic questions regarding invasions/reductions.
The symmetry in these positions is functional symmetry rather than strict mirror image symmetry. This is shown in the second example below.
The proverb relates in many ways to the idea of miai. If the two sides are identical, a play on one side and its mirror image on the other can usually be considered miai. After playing in the middle, you might then be able to make an eye on either side, or connect on either side, or make territory on either side ... whatever the goal is in that situation.
Of course, this proverb can be misleading. There are the exceptions mentioned below, but also, sometimes the miai inherent in a position of symmetry means that no move is even necessary. It would be more accurate to say that in a symmetric position, if any move is necessary, it's probably in the middle.
For really simple applications of this proverb, consider all of the killable eye shapes that have three points or larger.
In the example, Black can keep the group alive in seki by playing on the point of symmetry as shown in the following diagram.
Of course, sometimes (as in this example) there is more than one point of symmetry - but the proverb will at least reduce your options.
A possible variation is White playing at . Then in this case, Black can apply the same proverb again, by playing at
. Then a and b are miai, and c and d are also miai, so Black lives with two eyes.
However, if Black plays at the wrong point of symmetry at or a, then White
to
kills the Black group.
Sometimes, it also applies to the opening:
This proverb seems counterintuitive. Sente certainly feels like it gains something! ;-) And, strictly speaking, it is not true. Sente does gain something: It keeps the opponent from playing the reverse sente. [1]
Using the simile in Winning Ways, playing sente is like cashing a check before it expires. You are claiming what is rightfully yours. Playing sente (and getting a response) normally leaves the count unchanged.[2]
When you are estimating the score, you assume that sente plays are made and answered, for precisely the reason that the count stays the same.
Example:
After the sente sequence, -
, Black has 4 points of territory in the corner. We still count the corner as 4 points for Black before the sente. We consider White as owning the sente (White has the privilege of playing the sente), because of its large threat. Under normal circumstances White will be able to play at
with sente before Black can afford to play the reverse sente.
In fact, if played too early, White 1 is worse than "gains nothing"; it is aji keshi since it unnecessarily removes a ko threat which White may need later. 1 is moderately large as a ko threat since if Black does not answer, a White play at 2 kills.
After a sente sequence each player has made the same number of plays. If the first player has gained anything, it is for free. This proverb is the go version of the saying, There is no such thing as a free lunch.
I find this last line confusing. Does it mean having sente and using it to play a gote move? Or is it some sort of alchemy that takes a gote move and makes it sente? Hyperpape
Bill: Playing a gote with sente generally means that the opponent made a mistake. That's why you make a profit for free. Sometimes it refers to a so-called double sente, where one player makes a very large gote by comparison with the rest of the board and then the next largest move is the reply to it. Sometimes it just refers to a situation like this one:
[1] Sometimes making a sente play gains because your opponent does not reply. For instance, he may ignore a ko threat. That is not what this proverb is about.
[2] On occasion, you should play sente and take a loss. For instance, it may be worth it to play a losing ko threat. Or it may be best to take a loss to prevent your opponent from taking the local play when you give up sente.
Dieter: I object to this page. It confines the concept of sente to what it means in the endgame. It is not true that sente moves keep their value whatever is done on the rest of the board. order of play is important and there are numerous examples of forcing moves that are played before the shape of a position is settled.
Bill: It's a proverb, Dieter. It does only apply to one sense of sente, but such sente moves are not confined to the endgame. Are there sente plays that gain points? Sure, but they are gote plays from a different perspective. More about this on Does kikashi gain nothing
Leo: So as far as I can tell, "Sente gains nothing" means "before it gets played, you should already be counting as if it had been played, so it shouldn't affect your appraisal of what the final score will be"? Does it also mean "the player who keeps sente keeps things proceeding the way they already are, and so only the player who accepts gote needs to reassess their situation"?
(Added from Sente Gote)
Q: How many points does playing a sente-gote in sente gain?
A: None!
(On average.)
Playing the reverse sente gains the size of the play, but all playing the sente in sente gains is preventing the reverse sente. As a rule, that will be possible, until the temperature drops to the size of the play. (That's why we measure the size of a sente-gote by the size of the reverse sente. It tells us how urgent the play is.)
Playing the sente is like cashing a check before it expires.
(In exceptional cases you play the sente because your opponent will not answer it {see tedomari}, but then you are not playing it in sente. ;-))
Because you do not gain points by playing the sente, when you are estimating territory you assume that sente plays are made and answered.
From a strictly game theoretic point of view, NO PLAY gains anything. The reason is that the value of the position before you make the play is given as the value after the following best move is made. So, you can only change the value of a position by making suboptimal plays that give away points.
Bill: It depends upon your game theory. :) If the definition of the value of a position depends upon whose move it is, then you are right. But if the value does not depend upon whose move it is, as in Combinatorial Game Theory, then moves can gain something. :)
TsuQ: The concept of what constitutes a position often depends on whose move it is, such as in the AGA superko rules. In that case a position would only exist relative to who is to move. If it mattered whose move it was, and thus it was possible to gain something from playing a move if you were considering the position separate from the move, it seems to me that position couldn't have a value - its value would be contingent upon whose move it was.
This proverb warns the player against getting carried away and overextending, so that "weak points and doubtful positions begin to grow up behind him and he must then hand over the sente to his opponent while he retraces his steps to make repairs (Segoe, Go Proverbs Illustrated)."
looks strong, but leaves a weakness behind.
has to go back and patch up.
avoids the weakness and still threatens
. After
Black takes sente.
A Beginner's Question: Could the author or other contributors please explain why the second position is more favorable for black? It is not obvious to me, a beginner, why I should prefer the second outcome to the first. --Dent
My answer surely comes to late, but the reason why the lower diagram is preferred is that it's black's turn after the local sequence (black has sente), while it's white's turn after the sequence of the upper diagram (white has sente). --wurfmaul
See Also:
"When in doubt, tenuki."
There are a few justifications for this particular formulation:
This precise formulation of the proverb was popularized by Bill Spight, but has a long career as a traditional Japanese proverb:
Bill: I made up this saying some time ago with tongue in cheek, but with some seriousness, too. To my surprise I have found a Japanese version
here: "When you don't know where to play, tenuki."
I also ran across it in Go Seigen's 21st Century Go. The Japanese >>proverb has been around for a long time, I suppose.
Noah?: I have always thought of this as saying that if you don't know where to play in a local situation, logically that means that there is not 1 move that stands out. As such, if there is not 1 move that stands out, then there are 2 or more moves of similar or equal value to the player, and as such, he doesn't need to play, because if one move loses it's value, then the other will still be there, and then will be the time to play it. Of course that's not necessarily true, both moves could disappear at the same moment, but it does make sense that if you have a doubt of where to move, then you have options, and one of those options isn't much better than the others, so why choose now when you can play somewhere where there aren't options.
See also:
This proverb, "There is death in the hane", refers to the fact that the hane on the first line is a very common method of killing groups. The main purpose of the hane is to reduce the space for making eyes.
Definition: Hane -- A single stone that "reaches around" the outside of an opposing unit diagonally, adjacent but unconnected to an existing unit. ~~ Dr. John C. Dealey
This article assumes that readers know how to prevent escape on the first line.
The hane at kills the Black group with a bulky five dead shape. If Black tries to capture at a, this does not gain an eye, and White can block Black's escape at b.
For example, this Black group (an L+1-group) can be killed with the hanes at and
. If Black blocks at a, it will turn Black's interior space into a dead bulky five. White can then kill Black with a placement tesuji at b.
Notice that in the above examples, the hane stone is not defended when put into atari. Instead another hane or a placement follows. That is because capturing the hane stone will result in a false eye.
See also:
This proverb relates to where to play to kill a group. First, consider the hane. Next, consider the cut. Then, consider the placement.
See There is Death in the Hane.
The eye-stealing tesuji typically involves the following shape:
If White plays there, the shape is destroyed. Usually, the stone is in place, so that Black eventually will have to prevent the cut and connect at a, ending up with a clumsy shape.
Variants of the tesuji can occur in simpler situations:
With the one white stone in place, any of a, b, c makes the eye false. White can play whichever of the three is convenient.
Another variant:
Black cannot get a real eye here, a and b are miai to make it false.
In some cases, a variant of the tesuji can be the start of an attack on a large group. Consider this position which fairly often arises from a 33 invasion joseki:
This is not much of a threat in isolation, but if there are a few other white stones about or if it can be played as a ladder-breaker or a ko threat so White gets more than one move in the area, it might lead to an attack on the entire black group.
tapir: Stealing an eye where black doesn't need one more eye isn't very useful, imo. But the question is how to threaten the cut in the most beneficial way.
If the cut is something to fear for black (white stones along the left edge) may well gain something.
An example at the edge of the board.
...even when Black throws in with , White can make a second eye with
.
This works away from the edge, too.
Capturing three White stones at makes an eye too, so Black lives.
However, this proverb has exceptions too.
... kills. Since a and b are miai, White dies.
Here is another counter-example. Such an counter-example can also be found away from the side.
A possible heuristic to see whether the "capture three to make an eye" proverb applies is to look at the position immediately after capturing. In each of the four cases below, we see whether we can form an Black eye at either the a points. If White can occupy all the b points after Black's capture, then Black has no eye here.
A related page is capture two recapture one.
See also the pages in the Eyes Collection.
See also:
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See also:
This concise proverb means: Six stones in a row on the second line die, but eight stones on a row live. Seven stones in a row depends on sente.[1]
This applies to the life of a group which has no eyes and which has a solid row of connected stones on the second line. As long as the group is firmly enclosed on the second line, the number of external liberties is irrelevant.
Even if Black has sente, White will end up with a straight-four eyespace, which is alive. The two x points are miai.
With seven stones and sente, White also ends up with a straight-four eye space, which is alive. The two x points are miai.
With seven stones and gote, White ends up with a straight-three big eye. After 5 White is dead.
With six stones, even with sente, White ends up with a straight-three eye space. After 4 White is dead.
[1] It is assumed no surrounding conditions affect this local truth.
If there is a stone at one of the points a, White can threaten to connect at b and make a living shape next. Therefore, depending on the surrounding position, the points a and b serve as useful aji for White.
The following exercises include such, slightly varying, conditions.
On the third line or in the corner on the second line a string of four stones is dead, and a string of six stones is alive. A string of five stones lives or dies according to sente. Similar proverb is Six Die But Eight Live (on second line)
Bill: This appears to be White's best play, leaving a possible seki. See Segoe's sequences.
Editor comment: Seki is a kind of unconditional life. (Six live)
Eyes of more than 3 spaces are big eyes. Big eyes have more eye liberties than the number of empty points in the eye. The following diagrams explain. Beware however, big eyes can be small in the corner.
The following discussion follows from the small eye liberties page.
Karl Knechtel: These diagrams show the big-eyed groups completely surrounded. Liberties are kind of useless in these cases. Please refer to the examples at the bottom of the page for more practical application.
As a summary of the number of internal liberties each shape has in a capturing race, see the table below.
Using the same theory as in small eye liberties, we do the same counting for the four-space eye, the first big eye. First we count two liberties at the marked stones; now Black has three liberties left, because after White plays atari at a, and Black answers at b, we get...
... a three-space eye.
So a four-space big eye has 2 + 3 = 5 liberties.
That's three liberties for the "three-space eye" and two more liberties for the additional step above.
Karl Knechtel: This result also holds for the "square" arrangement for a 4-point eye. Other 4-point eye spaces are alive. Remember that two eyes trumps any consideration of liberties from a "capture-or-be-captured" perspective.
Again we count two liberties before the first capture, and three this time around. White's next play must be at the indicated point, or else Black makes life.
Note the difference though: The square cannot provide two eyes since it takes two moves in a row to DivideTheSpace; the T-shape (pyramid four) depends on sente. As a result, if a semeai starts involving the group with a T-shaped eye, there has already been a play inside, so only four liberties remain.
The same theory goes, counting three marked stones, and after the exchange of White a and Black b, we have...
... a four-space big eye with five liberties.
Summing up, a five-space big eye has 3 + 5 = 8 liberties.
By the way, this shape is also known as the bulky five.
That's five liberties for the "four-space big eye" and three more liberties for the additional step above. You get the idea.
Karl Knechtel: The greek cross also provides 8 liberties in the same way. Both of these shapes can be made alive if Black gets to play next, so as before, these shapes generally give only 7 liberties in a semeai. Other 5-point shapes are alive.
... will get reduced to a five-space big eye.
It has 4 + 8 = 12 liberties.
Karl Knechtel: Yet again, you really only get 11 liberties in a semeai, since opponent will have already played here - otherwise, you can make life.
A very reduced set of eyes of seven spaces can be killed.
White can almost Fill Black's 7 space big eye with a Rabbitty Six, a killing shape. After Black captures, a six space eye remains, leaving 12 liberties. Black's capture cancels out one of the five stones, giving a grand total of 17 liberties.
Karl Knechtel: This time, there must be two plays ahead of time by White in order to make it impossible to Divide the Space:
There are two implications of this fact:
This is a boundary case of sorts: All seven-space eyes are alive normally, but some of them are extensions of the unique 6-point dead shape, and can thus be turned dead with enough stones inside. Since there are no dead 7-point shapes, it is impossible to kill a group with an 8-point eye in this way. (This assumes alternating play after the inside group is captured, with the owner of the captured group going first.) This is why, although we can extend the proverb to say "... and seven is seventeen", it makes no sense to continue with "... and eight is twenty-three".
HandOfPaper: For those who are curious, the formula for continuing the uselessness is "n is (n^2-3n+6)/2".
The theory is summarized by the proverb Four Is Five And Five Is Eight And Six Is Twelve : 4=5, 5=8, 6=12.
yucca? Can be memorized through formula k*(k-1)/2 + 2 :)
napkuchen the formula should be (k-1)*(k-2)/2 + 2 or HandOfPaper's formula (n^2-3n+6)/2
iopq: In a semeai, then what counts is 4 = 5 with no stones inside, 5 = 7 with one stone inside, 6 = 11 with one stone inside and 7 = 15 with two stones inside.
golearner Took a look at the related problem above at goproblems. Fascinating problem, very interesting. When I read the comments, there was a good question about the solution (if White plays J2 instead of K1). Anyone stronger care to check?
golearner Another interesting problem -- doesn't seem related to this page though. No big eyes that I can see. Good example for corner ko, maybe.
Authors: Morten Pahle, Dieter
The so called carpenter's square is one of the most complicated of the basic life and death positions. It is said that anyone who completely understands the shape is at least professional shodan. It was misunderstood until the 1300s. It is simple enough as far as its vital point and status are concerned - it almost always results in a ko. However there are endless ways to set up the ko, and even more ways to defend incorrectly and end up dead anyway.
The discussion is divided into an easy part and a difficult part. More discussion is found at the weak carpenter's square.
The black formation in this diagram is the carpenter's square. The vital point is a: Black can play there to live. White can play there to turn the corner into ko.
The best way to set up the ko depends to a large extent on the number of outside liberties of the black group. If Black has none, White starts by playing on the vital point. Black attaches on the first line, and White stretches in the other direction.
White further reduces the black eye space and after 5, the only way left for Black to live is engage in a ko.
Bill: If , after
makes a throw-in ko at a or b. White can also make seki at a.
This is not as good for White as the previous Continuation diagram.
Black 4 in the previous diagram is forced: here's how Black dies by playing atari.
Here's why the basic method fails when there is an outside liberty. Everything goes smoothly for White until 6.
It seems that one as white, one would only need to learn the method that works with 2 outside liberties, as it will also work in 1 and 0 outside liberties. As black, the other variations I suppose have some value in knowing why they don't work (or work as well for white) in the 1 and 2 liberty versions... Or have I missed something?
(Sebastian:) The difference is that the edges have to be better protected. In diagram "Two outside liberties", you need the marked stone . With 0 liberties, you can do without.
The black shape in this corner is called the L-group. This shape is dead even if Black plays first. The proverb says: "The L-group is dead".
Note that no combination of edge hanes and outside liberties help Black. The same sequences given above still work for White.
Q: Really? What about black's attempt 4 above?
A: See next diagram
Knowing the L group, its status and the way in which it is killed, can be very useful to speed up your calculations of life and death in the corner. Several positions can be solved by realizing that they are somehow 'like an L group'. We used this strategy on the L+1 Group page to show that the L+1 groups are killed by a hane without needing further calculations, it can also be used for groups like this one: The shape that would be made if White plays here, is even less than an L group with one extra move at the marked stone, and so Black can be certain that he will be able to kill White after White plays at
. For another example, take a look at the OD1P - Oct 16 Problem.
this looks much more like a tripod group that has been blocked on both sides, than a kind of L-group. the next example seems clearer
Here is another example of how knowing the basic shapes can spectacularly increase the speed and accuracy of your analysis.
Referring to this position in her book on the endgame, Ogawa Tomoko wrote on page 18: "The time had come to capture at . In terms of the left edge alone, this move was worth sixteen points. It gave White additional profit on the upper edge by making White a sente."
For somebody who doesn't know the L group, it would take a fair amount of time to consider the various follow-up moves in this area to the endgame capture at . However with the knowledge of this basic shape readily available in your head, this is a 5 second analysis.
takes away an option for the black corner group by capturing on the left side. What's left in the corner would be a dead L group if White had both a and b. This means that White a is sente, as Black must answer at b.
Creating some sort of shape by turning at is Black's strongest attempt to live. White refutes it by reducing Black's eye shape with
. After that, a and b are miai to limit Black to one eye.
The door group with one extra leg is unsettled. Since a move at a reduces the shape to the dead door group, it is White's killing move. Incidentally it is also one of the moves allowing Black to live. From this it is also easy to understand that the door group with two legs is unconditionally alive.
The presence of hane at the marked points helps a bit towards life for the black group, while absence of either stone helps a lot towards its death. Keeping this in mind, together with the shapes above, will help you to analyse similar situations in your games.
--Stefan
Exercises on the door group:
The 1-2 points have a number of peculiarities; and the heuristic principles of fighting, which normally apply to the sides, often work differently in the corner. These peculiarities lead to the saying "Strange things happen at the one-two point".
Some of the peculiarities of the 1-2 point include:
Impossibility to approach a stone at the 1-2 point from the corner 1-1 point. This can give the player who occupies the 1-2 point an additional tempo to win a capturing race. The double shortage of liberties situation illustrates this case.
Occupying both 1-2 points is the most efficient way of making an eye, provided that the 2-2 point cannot be occupied by the opponent. This aspect is a recurring theme in many corner life-and-death problems.
The 1-2 point can often be used to force a ko in the corner at the 1-1 point, such as the bent four in the corner as shown in this diagram. This has ramifications in both capturing races and life-and-death situations. A couple of endgame tesujis also rely on this peculiarity.
tderz: From WeiQi the predecessor of WeiQi TianDi, 1980, Nr. 4, p.31 and, of course, some other famous sources..
In all problems Black has sente.
Another feature of the 1-2 point is the possibity of a throw in tesuji. An example is considered at Stupid Moves.
I will show another example.
Black played as a ko-threat. I will not discuss whether this was the best threat. White answered at
giving Black another threat at a. White should have played at a.
Here was in answer to
. In fact it also attacks
; and is a direct threat.
The throw-in , at the 1-2 point, captures
, because of the weakness at a.
Actually I can point to a stupid player with White who lost a ko because of this mistake. It was a certain HolIgor (IGS 5k*).
Thank you for correcting mistakes.
The 1-2 point is a place where many kos happen. For example, the ko that HolIgor (IGS 5k*) lost.
Black plays hoping for White's mistake. White sees the ko. White suspect that she wins the capturing race without ko (but it is so difficult to read 8 moves ahead, shame on her!), and she decides to fight the ko.
But the sad story of White's mistake has little to do with the topic, and the topic of this page is the 1-2 point. By taking it, Black got a ko that saved his group.
How is this a capturing race? After black's play at the 1-2, wouldn't white make life by:
The 1-2 point is a critical point in many life and death problems. The difference between living or dying locally is at least 20 points. It is something that cannot be taken easily. That's the difference between winning and losing, or losing and losing badly.
Examples
See also:
In a fight where one group has one eye and the other group has not, seki is not possible and in the majority of cases the group with one eye wins. We calculate the capturing race as follows:
The group with eye counts its outside liberties, its eye liberties and the inside liberties. The group without eye counts their outside liberties. The threshold thus becomes
If the numbers are equal, the one who has sente kills the other. If one number is larger, the other party is dead already. The reason why eyes win semeais is that all inside liberties go to the group with eye.
At first glance Black seems to have more liberties than White (6 against 5). When we apply the theory, however Black cannot win the race even if playing first. a + b + circled points yields 5. The c points yield 4.
There is a second way in which eyes influence semeais, less well-known (and in general also less important). The following diagrams show how it works. Black and White both have four dame.
Black has an eye and White does not, but at first sight that does not seem to matter, because there are no shared liberties. Nevertheless, White is not able to win the capturing race, as this diagram shows.
The reason for this is the approach move that White has to make, with . At first sight, Black has a similar approach move problem at a. However, this problem does not worry Black, who can simply solve it by making b the last liberty that Black fills up. White, on the other hand, is forced to play the eye as the last move - so White has to make the approach move first. Stating this as a rule:
A complicating factor is that when there are big eyes (four spaces or more), the number of liberties also is higher than a naive count would suggest. See Four Is Five And Five Is Eight And Six Is Twelve or counting liberties for this effect.
See also the pages in the Eyes Collection.
Authors: Morten Pahle (10 kyu), Arno Hollosi (1 dan), Andre Engels (2 dan), Dieter
Check your opponent's escape routes for a weak group very carefully before moving in for the kill.
That is, don't play nakade moves, in particular, against a group that may still escape or connect out. That doesn't mean that one shouldn't remove the base; that's a typical way of chasing a group while making profit.
If you do concentrate on destroying eye shape as well as eye space, before closing off all escape routes, then
A situation where this proverb might be applied is when the territories are already defined, and collapsing a group's eye space forces it to flee into territory you more or less control. A vicious tooth-and-nail fight inside what was your own territory is not something you want unless you know you can win, or you know you will lose the game otherwise.
(I think invented this one. -- BlueWyvern)
Edited - Charles Matthews
Found this proverb at Improve Fast at Go http://users.eniinternet.com/bradleym/Ch1.html Near the end
It sounds like a simple truth but still how often do you try to kill a group that can connect to another group? Or worry about eyes while you can connect to another group?
Also the idea is:
To the extent feasible -- Avoid Becoming Enclosed
To counter an enclosure threat --"If In Doubt, Run Out."
Because only enclosed groups can be killed,-- There Is Little Value In Playing Inside Moves Against An Unenclosed Group.
and also
Its usually better to play outside moves, and force your opponent to make eyes and "live Small"
Caution
These principles are not absolute! There are circumstances in which the global position makes it more advisable to strike first at the opponents key shape point(s) to prevent an easy two eyes, and then profitably harass the fleeing group as it struggles to either connect or secure its eyes in the center.
A good read. The publication also gives examples. Improve Fast at Go http://users.eniinternet.com/bradleym/Ch1.html
Everyone makes a big fuss about Lessons in the Fundamentals of Go, but IMHO, "improve fast in go" is far superior in actualy teaching you fundamentals. Also a much easier read. LuisSousa?
A ko is called an approach ko if one player must make an approach move in order to convert the ko into a direct ko. In the example below, the ko is an approach ko, because White will have to play at b before White can capture the four Black stones.
In this diagram, Black and White are involved in a ko fight around the position of the marked black stone and a. If Black wins this ko fight, he can capture the white stones and end the ko, but before White can win the ko fight, she will first have to fill up a liberty at b or c (b is better). Black can then re-take the ko, which will then be fought out the normal way. Thus, White will have to "win" this ko twice to capture the Black stones.
The above example is a one-move approach ko. Going on, if Black had even more liberties we could also get a two-move approach ko, a three-move approach ko, and so on.
White's chances of winning the ko do of course diminish the more often she would have to win it. A two-move approach ko can be considered a reasonable fight, but as the saying goes, A three-move approach ko is no ko.
It is important to distinguish this type of ko from a ten thousand year ko where also a kind of approach move is involved.
The exact phrase for the terms is not agreed upon. The following occur: "indirect ko with 1 approach move", "1-move approach ko", "1-step approach ko", "1-move approach move ko", "1-step approach move ko". Also see the links for yet further variation. (Note: In SL the "step" terminology is deprecated.)
The count of an approach ko depends on the ko threat situation. (More on this kind of position.)
[1] The Japanese term for it is yose-ko; here yose indicates approach, not endgame.
The proverb recommends to respond with hane to an attachment.
White 1 intends to settle up quickly here. When you are weak and the opposition is strong you should play closer to the opponent's stones.
Black responds with hane 2.
Before playing 1 (or even before the attachment) white should check if the ladder is favourable for him.
How about this? (my first edit, just trying ;) )
bud1027: This is a standard sequence.
Klaus: Here is joseki, even if the hane is on the second line!
An attachment in to the corner stone early in the game is bad for the side that attaches. Discussion about how uncomfortable things go if such an attachment is made could be found in /Discussion.
BobMcGuigan: Like all proverbs this one has exceptions. Often one should respond to an attachment with an extension (stretch). Doing this often gives less help to the attacher, making him/her work harder, and gives the attacher fewer forcing moves.
Charles Matthews That's quite true, but if one looks how pros play it depends rather on the specific situation.
Some examples.
This proverb says that in a position like the one in this diagram, playing hane with Black a or White b (facing the center) is a very big move. If one is faced with a position like this, it is hardly ever good to play somewhere else on the board. The difference between these two moves is simply too large.
Enfors: More newbie questions: Wouldn't c be better than , to create two Tiger mouths, which would also protect the cutting point above c?
Dieter: whether a solid connection is better than a trumpet connection is a debate which is governed by the local, and most often even global situation. Basically, the trumpet connection is, as you say, locally connecting all stones, while the solid connection here will leave the other cutting point depend on a ladder. The drawback of a trumpet connection is that there are two peeping forcing moves available for the opponent, which potentially turn the whole construction into a dango.
There is some talk about this debate at the trumpet connection page, but I believe it is worthy of a page of its own. I'll leave this here for some time, then move it.
Enfors: Ah yes. I see now. At the time, I didn't notice that the cutting point left above c is ladderable.
tapir: Another issue for the trumpet connection is what happens after Black d. With a solid connection White most of the time will play hane, with a trumpet connection Black can cut in sente.
martin: Can black cut at instead of extending at
?
hyperpape: As always, it depends on circumstances, but Black has the isolated stone and the cutting point at a after cutting and connecting. Unless getting the atari at d is necessary and valuable for Black, this will usually result in a local loss.
Author: AndreEngels, (WikiMasterEdit by Dieter).
The proverb cross-cut then extend (or the first to extend from a crosscut has the advantage) is somewhat misleading. There has been a lot of criticism that can be read at the /Technical Discussion page. A way to interpret the proverb is to reduce it to a not so common situation:
Some diagrams to explain.
It is tempting to play atari. Then connecting at is a good idea. However, this strengthens White and weakens the lone Black stone. A ladder at a may be possible.
After the more defensive-looking extension it is White's turn. However, White has to make a choice of which stone to strengthen. This is in fact an application of the 1-2-3 principle: if you are going to strengthen at in the previous diagram, why not do it at once as in this diagram.
this part has been added recently and urges review
Playing atari and setting up for a nose tesuji may be playable though.
Bill: Right now this page seems too sparse. How much help is it to someone who does not already know the proverb? (I am commenting here because I expect to delete this note later. :))
This is a proverb which may be stated in different ways:
Leaving cutting stones usually means leaving aji behind. Later in the game aji can become your downfall.
When the capture is a ponnuki, there are shape reasons to capture. But quite generally there are strategic reasons to capture if that also connects (and so reduces your number of weak groups).
There is a corollary to one of the meanings of this proverb: cut the side you don't want.
Some players may be familiar with this 3-5 point joseki. Black will sooner or later decide whether to take the corner territory or outside influence.
It is really Black's decision and not White's, because White must capture the cutting stone in order not to get an inferior result.
If White resists, Black captures a stone in a ladder. White will be forced to live very small in the corner and Black gets magnificent outward thickness. This is not an even exchange.
Jonahx: This is a place where reading out the ladder is helpful (as it usually is) Becuase the ladder would have to cross a large part of the board, there very well may be a ladder breaking stone somewhere, especially if this is later in the game, in which case may not be such a bad move.
togo: The problem is that White now has to invest another stone to get life. Compare to the situation when is on the other side - then even smaller life would be sufficient.
Black can get the outside influence by cutting at the other side, forcing White to capture the cutting stone. The big difference with the previous diagram is that White lives already by the ponnuki. You could say White has sente. This is a fair exchange.
Again, White gets a cramped shape by resisting, and will have to defend at a or spoil the aji in the position, by playing b. Compare this to the ponnuki White makes in the "corner territory" diagram.
togo: Again the real problem is that white now has to invest another stone. If the whole exchange (including an extension) would be gote for black, all would be fine
After the 3-3 point invasion at , Black blocks and plays double hane with
and
. White naturally cuts and now the proverb comes in.
If White ignores the proverb, Black will gladly follow it and capture in a ladder at
[1], or cut it off with a.
This is even sente against the White group. See Kyu Exercise 1. So White ends up in an unfavorable position.
The Go proverb "beginners play atari" is much like the chess saying "patzer sees a check, gives a check". Beginners often find it difficult to resist the urge to give atari, even when the atari helps their opponent. In particular, one should beware of situations in which an atari may be aji-keshi or a thank you move.
Don't do something just because you can. Have a reason for doing it. And, no, "to capture the stones" is not enough of a reason. Why do you want to capture those stones?
The Japanese from which this proverb is probably derived is アタリアタリはヘボ碁の見本 ("atari-atari wa hebo-go no mihon"), which has a nuance vaguely different from "beginners give atari", something closer to "atari-atari is bumbling go at its best". A variant is アタリアタリはヘボ碁かな ("atari-atari wa hebo-go ka na", "see too many ataris, smell a bumbler").
Imagist: I don't think this is worthy of the negative attitude that it is associated with. Of course, you don't see dan level players playing atari on every stone they can, but for a beginner, this is okay; if they are playing atari too much, at least they are seeing it. It's just a stage of learning.
The same can be said of other techniques. For example, when I first learned the squeeze tesuji, I played it often; too often! Eventually I came to understand when it was appropriate and when it wasn't, but if I hadn't tried it a lot I wouldn't have figured that out.
In general, this can be thought of as a three-step process:
The black group to the left is an empty triangle as there is no stone at a. The white group is not an empty triangle (it is a full triangle), as there's a single black stone next to it.
Why is an empty triangle so bad?
First of all, the empty triangle doesn't maximize its liberties. It has 7 liberties in isolation, wheras the straight three have 8 liberties. Both make a strong connection. The loss of a liberty without any kind of gain is unacceptable. There are many, frequently occurring positions in real games, where this one liberty is vital.[1]
Secondly, two stones in a diagonal are connected, in the sense that they cannot be separated in one move, but they can be sacrificed if desired. Now the empty triangle is connected too, strongly, has a little bit more influence but must be sacrificed as a whole if needed. The one extra stone adds close to no value. It is a wasted stone.
Also, if Black wants to develop to the right, then play the marked stone instead. White cannot cut this formation without help from surrounding stones. Black's stones are securely connected. Closer to the side, farther extensions are virtually connected. This development is much more efficient than the empty triangle.
In contrast, the full triangle is very strong and efficient. In the upper position, Black can be cut. So, below fulfills a very important function: it connects two stones. By doing so, the white stone becomes very weak. The investment is 3-1, whereas in the empty triangle it is 3-0. Black's moves all have purpose.
In this opposing jump position, White can lull himself into thinking the peep serves the double purpose of connecting and threatening to cut. Then, jumps out.
Probably White had it all planned out until Black came up with this , which was a brilliant move according to the commentary, so that indeed White willingly anticipated the empty triangle in the previous diagram. Nevertheless, the shortage of liberties of the empty triangle created this opportunity for Black.
[1]
This comparison does not mean that this shape is good. In fact, you will not find this shape, with no opposing stone on any of these neighboring empty points, in a professional game. So any shape discussion is most relevant with actual game positions.
BramGo: Well, there are exceptions: Choi Cheolhan, 9p vs Meng Tailing, 5p, (2011-06-25) , move 106.
Good advice seldom comes any simpler than this.[1] A one-point jump like in the diagram below, is very often a good move. There are two obvious arguments in favor of this move: it is not easy to cut this shape successfully (see cutting the one-point jump), and it is a relatively fast way to jump out towards the center. Experiment with it in your games: play one if you really have no idea what else to play.
--Stefan
taiji : What is the record for ikken tobi plays in professional games? I can't find that information anywhere. Thanks.
[1] It is sometimes translated as "A one-space jump is never wrong." This is what Bill Spight says about that translation: "... an overstatement and a mistranslation. ...: A one-space jump is never bad. While still an overstatement, it is more accurate, since a even a good play can be wrong, and a not bad play will be wrong more often than that."
Dave: Sakata no Go is a 6-volume series published in the sixties. Volume 2 is on Shinogi. The first diagram in chapter one is shown here. Sakata writes that regardless of all the proverbs we have to think beyond them in order to get the most out of the specific position. In this case blindly accepting the proverb on this page and jumping to is exactly what Black is hoping for. It allows Black to build territory in the upper corner while continuing the attack with
.
The cut may work, but often the damage to your own stones is bigger than to the opponents':
(If circumstances permit more aggressive fighting, could also be at a.)
Black gets good shape, and while White is busy defending and
, Black's shape will get even better.
--dnerra
I'm beginner and I don't get why this sequence is bad? Haven't the two black stones been cut, and laddered?
-- ChristopheTryingToUnderstand?
If Black plays here instead, the white stone is captured, giving Black a good result - especially since he does not have a base in the starting diagram - Andre Engels
Bill: In the old days, when you had to walk a long ways to get to the Nihon Kiin, I used to kibitz pro games occasionally. I remember watching Fujisawa Hideyuki and somebody and wondering why the attacker of a group did not cut a one-point jump. It looked like it worked to me. Unlike the example above, the attacker was stronger. And sometimes you do see such cuts in pro games. But they are rare because in the context of a large-scale attack, they are too small.
(Later.) However:
Occurrence in pro games:
Game from 2004 Korean League: Song Taekon(Black) -- Lee Changho(White) W+R
Looks to me like a better proverb would be "don't cut the one point jump if you have nearby stones". ~srn347
Game record at go4go.
TheBigH: Can someone explain to me what Lee Changho was thinking with this move? Black's obvious response would be to atari from the right which not only forces W to extend but also helps the three weak stones on the right. It just looks like an outrageous way of equitably dividing the middle region while simultaneously giving up the initiative, so there must be some deep strategic point I'm not seeing. Thanks.
DanielTom: Actually, this move is a rather common tesuji. Its goal is very simple: White wants to cut the opponent's stones (and get cash by attacking). Of course this tesuji only works well when you have a very thick position around.
thanatos13: Therefore, the proverb should be "only try to cut the one point jump when you are as strong as a Big Grizzly Bear on both sides."
TheBigH: I get it now. Even if B ataris W can still permanently separate B's stones. Admittedly W is cut in half as well, but those two groups can flee to the safety of the ginormous walls W has everywhere, so B is worse off. Thanks for the explanations.
For extensions from a wall, or extensions in general, the following rule of thumb applies:
It is also embodied in the following proverb:
This rule can be applied to walls of heights one to four, and in rare occasions, five. Extensions of more than six spaces are very rare because an invasion is likely to succeed.
Here we can see examples of such ideal extensions in their abstract form. At the top, we see a two space extension from a single stone, at the right a three space extension from a two stone wall, at the bottom a four space extension from a three stone wall. In practice, nearby stones affect the rule of thumb. Mostly we talk about extensions happening on the third line, but it can also apply to extensions on the fourth line.
For the analysis as to why these extensions are ideal, we refer to the specific pages about these extensions. Basically, they are the farthest extensions on the third line which cannot be broken without the support of nearby stones.
Any closer extension suffers from overconcentration, any farther extension suffers from thinness. Again, on higher lines, such as the fourth or fifth, and with nearby stones, the rule of thumb must be inspected with caution or disregarded altogether.
Let's provide one example, on two common extensions.
The only way Black can prevent being separated is by granting White a powerful ponnuki on the third line.
Note: The usual response to
is
, not
.
With the marked stone, separation is not possible at all, neither gets White a good result. Of course, White stones in the area will influence the position.
There's an interesting quantitative point here: if the area of the framework defined by wall plus proper extension from it really goes up quadratically with the height of the wall, we have various possible conclusions, such as
or
or
Actually there is no reason to think any of these statements is completely misleading - all perhaps aspects of the truth.
Strike at the waist of the keima is a proverb which advises to cut across(called tsukekoshi in Japanese) a keima.
cuts by striking across the keima, away from the supporting black stones. This is generally preferable to cutting at a. White can dodge the cut by answering at b rather than a:
This ( and
) is not necessarily the continuation, but by playing the hane away from the position, White limits the loss to
.
Not striking across the keima, but cutting at as in this diagram is considered vulgar, since White sacrifices
easily to build good shape. Black has captured but one stone.
White's natural moves are good moves: blocking at , and either sacrificing
in order to make shape as in this diagram, or extending as in the next diagram:
If the surrounding position is strong enough, White can extend (stretch).
This is unlikely to occur, however, for if White were strong around, Black should not want to cut through the keima anyway.
In this example is a sacrifice for shape and sente.
togo: Connection in sente I would say. The shape does not look very spectacular to me.
is a sacrifice for shape, sente, and aji.
togo: Black gets a second eye in sente, if I see correctly.
is a sacrifice, mainly for territory.
togo: Connects in sente, I would say.
The Japanese term tsuke-koshi is literally attach across. For some time we have used waist cut but this is not necessarily standard terminology.
In Chinese, alone is called 跨 (kuā), the
-
-
sequence is called 跨断 (kuā duàn). The character 跨 (kuā) means "straddle", and the character 断 (duàn) means "cut".
The proverb cutting right through a knight's move is very big is related to the idea of the split shape.
BobMcGuigan: The split knight's move, as in the following diagram:
is usually a very bad shape for Black, but it often happens as a result of a ko threat that was ignored (see e.g. There are No Ko Threats in the Opening).
This shape is also discussed in Four basic shapes, part of a book by the chinese pro Fan Hui, where it is referred to as a ripped keima.
Black might have the knight's move shape already in place, and a ko starts somewhere else on the board. Then White might play as a ko threat, Black might end the ko, and White could then play the stone marked with a square..
Karl Knechtel: The keima (knight's move) usually provides a reasonably fast way of extending and in general won't be cut. After a strike at the waist of the keima, cutting on the other side isn't possible immediately because the opponent can be caught in a ladder:
(Note that the actual "strike at the waist of the keima" proverb refers to the situation where there's a supporting black stone - see the page for details. It came to mind, though.)
Of course, with two moves in a row locally, Black can plough straight through. The idea behind my proverb is that doing so is usually a very big play in actual game situations, and thus is sente and a big ko threat in many cases.
Why?
When Black is permitted to cut, the damage is evident, though contrived.
See also BQM23.
While locally the keima is quite strong, it takes only the marked black stone to ensure the cut - Yomiuri Shimbun's English language The Magic of Go column #179 is an article on this. -- lavalyn 17k
peeps at the cutting point, at which
happily connects. A typical thank you move, since White has not accomplished anything while in return Black's major aji has disappeared.
White should cut at in this diagram. Now the group at the bottom does not have a base and is under attack; and
can cause trouble later in the game.
Compare the two diagrams. This one is obviously better for White.
See also:
Often, very often, simply connecting at in response to a peep such as
is the best answer. In fact, exceptions to this rule are so rare that people quote the old Go proverb "Even a moron connects against a peep".
is joseki. A different and wise connection.
In a number of games, one player makes a peep, and then the other player makes a counter peep, the first player connects, and then the second player connects too.
Eventually, the first peep was answered by a connection, but not immediately.
See Also:
The proverb add a second stone and sacrifice both summarizes a common technique of sacrifice.
Consider the following sequence (discussed by Sakata Eio in his book "The Middle Game of Go").
Black has just played the crosscut at . (Sakata calls
vulgar style in the context of the discussed game, but that is another matter. There are plenty of occasions where this sequence is perfectly OK.)
It is clear that is going to be captured. Nevertheless Black adds another stone, in accordance with the proverb.
Compare this with an atari at without adding the extra stone: White would capture (a ponnuki), and that would be the end of it. The block at a is no longer sente now.
In summary: adding the extra stone increases the (marked) liberties of the black group. As White needs more moves to capture it, Black gets more forcing moves.
Whereas contact moves are considered bad for attacking (see don't attach when attacking), they are very useful when playing in the opponent's sphere of influence.
The reason for both is that contact moves in general will make both players' positions stronger. When you are attacking, making the opponent stronger is the last thing you want, but in an invasion, or when you are defending your own weak position, strengthening the opponent is much less problematic - he is already strong, and giving him a bit more won't hurt that much.
On the other hand, strengthening your own stones, and giving them the maximum amount of space, is often useful in these contexts.
Scartol: Correct me if I'm wrong, but I understand that you're supposed to attach to the stronger stone, as in this diagram (attach at the marked spot, not at a):
This is discussed in Attach To The Stronger Stone In A Pincer, but it seems like it would apply here, too.
DJ: Scartol, it seems to me that you're mixing things up a bit...
In Attach To The Stronger Stone In A Pincer the example is given on how to attack a stone by not attaching to it, but attaching instead to another one, in order to gain strength to use for attacking the first one. (Does it sound too confused?!)
Here you are in a different situation: you have to defend your stone! Therefore you should attach to the weak white stone... May I suggest a and b as possible options? The marked black stone doesn't make much sense to me... ;-)
Bill Spight: This is a very strange diagram. The black stone is on the second line.
Scartol, are you suggesting attaching to 2 stones? If you attached to a single stone, the reply to extend with the second, marked stone is not bad (even though there might be better plays). By attaching to the two stones at the marked spot, you make them more efficient than they were to start with. That is normally inadvisable. Black c looks more reasonable. :-)
Scartol: Yeah, I was mixed up, but DJ explained it okay. Can someone provide a diagram that does illustrate the principle of this page (and maybe delete all the rambling I've done?)
Author(s):
Cho Hun-hyeon, in his Lectures on Go Techniques, says: one should never ignore a shoulder hit.
, or a, is normally the response to a shoulder hit. For more analysis of the lines of play resulting from these, see shoulder hit
The difference from the previous diagram is huge.
Since ignoring a shoulder hit is equivalent to playing an armpit hit, ie playing after
is already in place, see the armpit hit page for more analysis of why ignoring a shoulder hit is bad.
The bamboo joint is an effective shape, that cannot directly be cut. But because of its compactness and the shared liberties of the four stones, there are only 10 liberties in total, for an isolated bamboo joint.
To maintain a connection against a push involves losing two liberties in gote. (Don't take away your own liberties?) This implies that bamboo joints can be attacked using shortage of liberties: for example by setting up a connect and die.
Scartol: Bamboo joints are not invincible, as I found out. I played and felt incredibly proud of myself for breaking through to my formerly dead group.
(Sebastian:) Does this prove that the bamboo joint is as strong as the linear joint (or whatever it's called), because whoever moves first wins?
Bill: It's called a pole connection.
DJ I'm afraid I do not quite understand your question.
A bamboo joint is as strong as the liberties it has, taking into account the inherent possibility of damezumari - see the examples.
If the bamboo joint has the same number of liberties as the group it is involved in a semeai with, whoever starts first wins...
(Sebastian:) Yes, you did understand and answer my question. It just wasn't obvious to me that they had the same number of liberties.
Ellbur: The bamboo joint may have fewer liberties than the linear joint. See Scartol's example at the top.
(Sebastian:) Scartol's example is great to illustrate the cautionary tale of this page, but I don't see an obvious way to compare the liberties with those of a pole connection. (1) There is no equivalent to the situation in the diagram since the threat of W's circled move wouldn't even be possible. (2) So, what would be the equivalent pole connection? We can choose a pole with any number of liberties >0; depending on that choice you get different answers. (3) What exactly do you mean by "liberty"?
symplicity: I too don't see an obvious way to compare the two. I mostly interpret this statement as a warning that even though a bamboo joint may "look" like it has a lot of liberties, because of the space in the center, it might not, for tactical purposes.
Basically, one should be aware that the liberties in the middle can vanish very suddenly when the opponent's threat to cut is sente. And as in problem 2, the opponent can also wait for the opportune time to do so.
See also:
In general, capturing a stone in a net is considered better than capturing it in a ladder, because a net does not run the risk of a ladder block on the other side of the board.
There are exceptions to this rule, mostly when the extra liberty that a net gives is detrimental, in which case a ladder is quicker (the opponent is in atari until the end).
[problem- can't this net be defeated by the sequence c-d-e-f-g? sorry for poor notation.]
No, see here "White can't cut...". Black plays at g instead of f. White has no choice but to capture at f; B at h forces white to fill in at and a couple more black moves capture the whole thing.
The net is better, because the ladder variation allows white to play a ladder block somewhere along the path of the ladder
Tapir: Even if there is no ladder breaker played by White, Black needs to capture at a time just in case. That is what I took from Kageyama: to capture with a ladder you need two moves, to capture with a net only one.
In this variation of the taisha joseki. What the books say is that is only playable when the ladder at a is good for White, capturing the stone
with the net White b and c isn't enough.
If the net continuation were good, White could play at in the setup diagram independent of the ladder, thereby avoiding the most difficult variations.
After these plays, however, Black has a good result, and the possibility of a black peep at d remains. Also forces
. Both of these effects are there because the marked black stone is still on the board.
For comparison, see the usual result from the ladder variation. White's capture in the ladder forces .
(Note that the standard mistake here is White at a before : this loses sente and is an example of ignoring the 123 principle.)
There is also an interesting tidbit in "Lessons in the Fundamentals of Go" by Kageyama. He states that when there are two ways to capture with one move, then the firmer is correct (choose the firmer capture).
In this example the two white stones can be captured with a geta by playing at a. However, according to Kageyama, the correct move is b, which has a firmer grip on the two stones.
Alex Weldon: There's something about this proverb that bothers me. Unless he also gives an objective definition of what "firmer" means (less liberties? That can't be it, or else a ladder would be "firmer" than a geta), I would read "firmer" to mean "with least aji." But since aji is bad potential, this just boils down to "Given a choice between two methods of capturing, the one that leaves the least bad potential is better," which is starting to sound an awful lot like a circular argument.
DJ: Alex, I think you're basically right (and I do not see any circularity...): I believe firmer does mean with good aji (see also my comments at Non local move versus a local move).
Alex Weldon: The circularity is not in defining "firmness" as "with good aji." The circularity is in stating that out of two ways of capturing a stone (or stones), the firmer way is better. On the surface, it sounds like wisdom, but it boils down to "out of two ways to capture a stone (or stones), the one with better aji is better," which is a tautology.
Gregory Wonderwheel: Unless "firmer" has a special meaning in Japanese Go jargon, at face value of the proverb, I take "firmer" to mean "with less cutting points" because that would reduce the number of possibilities for peeps before the capture, thus reducing the options for the opponent. Thus a short ladder could be firmer than a large net, and vice versa, a small net is more likely to be firmer than a long ladder.
Dieter: I believe there is this trade-off with ladders and nets.
I believe Kageyama's statement is that the long-range effect of a ladder in general is a heavier burden than the multiple short range aji of a net. As always with heuristics there are quite a few exceptions imaginable. In particular when the range of the ladder is rather short, it will most often be preferred over the net.
BTW, I would not call "the one with better aji is better" a circular statement, but I agree it just shifts the problem to the definition of good aji.
Notochord: Only if you consider aji to be the only characteristic of a position, which is stretching the definition a mite too far, I think. The point is essentially that the issue of aji, of giving those (most usually cutting) stones as little room to maneuver as possible, is often by far the most pressing concern. You should as a general rule play as tightly as possible, and avoid thinking that any move that succesfully makes a capture is just as good for the purpose of capturing as is any other move which does the same. As something of a corellary, I think that a main idea of the statement (Proverb?) is that we should not try to stretch our shape too much in capturing vital stones, in order to (for instance) reach towards some other position, and thus make our move 'less gote', since this usually creates a great deal of bad aji for the opponent to exploit which overwhelms the minor gains made from making a looser, weakly double-purpose capture.
In fact, this proverb should probably read
If Black defends and connects at , he has no severe follow up so that White can ignore it and treat
as a forcing move.
This situation yields quite a different shape. In this case, an extension to is better. It prepares an attack at
.
This is one case where database search does seem to support the proverb(s).
Charles Matthews did a search for a region like this (marked points included), not anchored (so in any position along the side), and symmetrised for left-right reflection. Mostly this formation will arise as White capping Black's stone. The most common answer was Black at a (30%); then Black at b (15%), Black at c (13%), tenuki and White plays d (10%), Black plays e (8%).
In handicap go the answer at a is recommended, and it is also the common play in simple cases like this:
Black does usually react with or the marked point. Of course, this is an artificial position, as the right corner is open. Still, playing
seems to leave Black a bit overconcentrated in relation to the left corner. But ...
This is from a pro game. now opens up the position in a way Black at a wouldn't. For example Black can attack at b.
Looking at how the cap is handled in pro games, one sees tenuki quite frequently as an answer. As one would expect, if there isn't a local response that is good-looking.
When in doubt from which side to approach a corner, it is usually better to take the open (or wider) side, i.e. the side where there is more space to make a base and/or more potential territory to be destroyed. This is conventional wisdom and hence often defied these days, as can be seen in database search.
Here, the upper side is wider than the left. Although White's position is said to be slightly overconcentrated, still he can extend to with satisfaction. He has possible follow-ups at a and b.
If he enters on this side however, his position gets really cramped. Here, he can easily be attacked.
So, invade a framework where it is easiest to invade. The logic that says invade first in a narrow space, so that later you can invade the broader space goes wrong if the opponent defends against the invasion in such a way as to consolidate the broad side.
This idea applies also for dealing with the opponent's framework from outside (when there is a free boundary).
As a general principle an approach like here, on the completely open side, is better than at a: in the latter case White will definitely get a weak group to defend, while with the open side White will possibly get a strong group on the outside.
Note that White cannot constrain Black's strategy here: Black may choose to pincer at b, in which case White will not be able to get a strong group. Instead White will take the corner or set up a running fight on the outside, the former being orthodox. Therefore the idea of the open side approach is related to flexibility. Black has played three times on this side before White plays a single stone. It is reasonable for White to allow Black some control of the direction of play. If White invaded at c Black would definitely play at d. White would be dictating the direction of play all right, but at a cost to her strategy. Don't push your opponent into good moves.
Hyperpape: This page uses 4-4 point examples (and presumably the same thing applies to the 3-3 point) but I just had the realization that you might categorize several plays against the Chinese Fuseki as falling under the same principle.
MrTenuki: Are you thinking about the various approaches to the 3-4 point "from the wrong direction"?
Hyperpape Them are the ones.
Blocking from the wider side means that you yourself will get more potential for territory
This Go proverb is meant for the situation in this diagram: White has just invaded at the 3-3 point below Black's 4-4 point (see 3-3 Point Invasion). On which side should Black block, at a or at b? The general rule is to block where your extension is wider or the potential moyo is larger.
Emptyriver- Sorry, but could you explain this a little more. It seems like Black will want to protect the weaker side (the territory on the left side seems less secure) from White's influence.
Jasonred If I'm not mistaken, the joseki does protect the weaker side. Anyhow, influence? what influence? This usually leads to White gaining some territory, and Black gaining influence, no? Of course, this is only joseki at kyu level, but good enough, I guess. Even at kyu level, I wouldn't want to be White in this sequence, as the board was just too open to trade off the territory from san-san invasion for that wall!
tderz: Blocking from the wider side means that you yourself will get more potential for territory, while the opponent will get less space, even lacking stability.
Black to play: a or b? [10]
Incorrect: the -shimari is devalued, the
extension is less cramped than in the correct diagram and
if Black closes the corner now with a, there are still later "imponderabilities" as b etc.
[10] Source of diagrams (adapted, TD): Guo Juan, Teaching Go at different Levels, Nov. 2002, (advice for 1-5k)
The three black stones are put under pressure here by the white stones (particularly the marked ones). is correct shape. This is the point known as the centre of the three stones.
More correct title: Answer Keima Approach with Kosumi
is what the proverb is about. It is only one of several useful answers to
. The usefulness depends on the surroundings to a great extent. See the end of this page for more.
Below a mix of examples and completely different moves and shapes:
This means to play kosumi (diagonal move) when your opponent plays a keima (knight's move) approach to your stone. Your kosumi will be on the point that the approach aimed at. It also aims at a shoulder hit (katatsuki) against your opponent's stone.
Take for example the following situation that often arises in a handicap game:
But this, while joseki, is very solid, and is usually avoided. The kosumi-tsuke is good to know, but also relies on the surroundings. You would not typically respond with either kosumi or kosumi-tsuke to a keima kakari.
This seems to be a misconception these days, as the kosumi response to the keima kakari is seen often in pro play. -- Anon
So how come this is a "proverb"? Aside from here, I have seen it only on Jan van der Steen's list, and did not find an explanation there.
The other way around makes more sense:
is a keima response to the kosumi of
. That is joseki, also.
Bob McGuigan: First, all proverbs have exceptions and are only meant to suggest a proper way to play. The correct move in a situation always depends on the over-all board position. In the preceding diagram is a kosumi but doesn't have the same relationship to the corner 3-4 stone. Also,
is not the only joseki response to
, there are several "non-keima" possibilities.
Bill: Yes, Bob, all proverbs have exceptions, but you could also say, "Answer keima with keima", or any one of a variety of responses. This is not a question of exceptions. It takes some thought to come up with examples where the kosumi is the correct response. This is a proverb?????
(Later.) I did a Google search. The source of this so-called proverb seems to be this page. ;-)
AJP: From the Nihon Ki-in's Handbook of Proverbs (Volume I) where it is listed as: "play the kosumi against the keima." In all of the examples the kosumi is Shusaku-esque in that it answers a keima approach by taking the critical shape point illustrated here in order to prevent a follow-up pressing move by the opponent at the same spot. Fittingly enough, the point a now becomes an important point. The proverb does seem to be liberally overinterpreted on this page. :)
Bill: Thanks, Andy. As the page history indicates, everybody was guessing about what it meant. Now we know. :-)
.Bob: Well I was responding to the previous post. But it is a more-or-less standard shape move to respond to a keima approach (from below) with a kosumi. WHo knows what a "proverb" is exactly anyhow.
See also keima slide and ogeima slide.
Five liberties for tactical stability refers to a set of connected stones not enclosed by the other player's stones. Apparently coined by Bruce Wilcox
One idea of Wilcox's that I have found useful is that you do not have to worry about shortage of liberties of a group that has at least five liberties. It is not something that I had used as a guide, but now when a group has only four liberties I check the tactical situation.
Recently I watched a game in which a Japanese 6 dan made a mistake by reducing his own liberties to four by answering a ko threat. A neighboring group was loosely connected to the one with four liberties, and that group had only two liberties. By throwing in a stone, his opponent made the connection cost two liberties to the first group, yielding a combined group with only two liberties. Then came the devastating atari.
Wilcox's dictum (EZGO) that a group with five liberties is safe from shortage of liberties is therefore wrong. For instance, by adding another loosely connected group to the example above the danger comes when the first group has six liberties.
But the converse is true. Any group with fewer than five liberties should be checked for shortage of liberties, as a matter of course, and one should be wary of reducing one's liberties to four. A strong tactician has no need for such advice, but it can help the rest of us avoid blunders.
SnotNose: I find it interesting (though obvious) that a single stone in the middle of the board away from all other stones has four liberties--one shy of the minimum under this guidance.
A separate interesting (yet still obvious) connection is to relate this guidance about 5 liberties to the concept of "adding stones before sacrificing." That is, it is often advantageous to increase the liberties of your sacrifice stones so as to create more forcing moves as your opponent surrounds them. In this sense, one is adding liberties to increase the tactical value of the group, even if it is only to be sacrificed.
It is fairly typical to add one more stone before sacrificing, often increasing liberties from 1 (a sacrifice group in atari) to 3 (by playing out of atari). Sometimes yet another stone is added, increasing liberties from 2 to 4. Still, the group to be sacrificed is staying below the minimum for tactical stability. Perhaps it can never get enough liberties, which is why it must be sacrificed.
Diagram illustrating what I've just said.
Suppose White chooses to sacrifice stones so as to build up the
stones. The
stone on the second line has one liberty and White cannot increase the number of liberties of this stone (assuming Black always replies). The
stone on the third line has two liberties, which is enough for White to get in a forcing move at a. But by increasing this stone's liberties and decreasing those of the
stones, White can do better.
increases liberties from two to three in sente.
temporarily increases liberties to four. Then
decreases them down to three again, but this also removes a liberty from Black's group. Now that the white group has three liberties, White can get two more forcing moves in sente. Namely, White can make the
/
and
/
exchanges. Since a and b are both sente (the latter threatening a ko), White holds both in reserve for later.
helps White's shape.
Ladders are a huge source of aji which should be removed by honte moves, even if it means taking gote.
There are many positions where ladder conditions allow you to capture one or two cutting stones.
The fundamental advice in the proverb is to remove the ladder entirely by completing the capture in it, and as soon as possible.
For example if Black plays this joseki, ending with the marked play to capture in a ladder, Black must expect to play once more here at a in the near future.
Large implications exist for ladder-breaker moves far away from the area. Defensive measures must constantly take the ladder into account - yielding suboptimal play locally to maintain the ladder. This is even more important in the fuseki stage - where often a joseki would end with the removal of a ladder.
It may be possible to set up a short-range capture, preventing the ladder having a whole board range. One can find a few examples (in pro games) of professionals doing that - which is fine for them: they know what they are doing. For beginners in particular, removing the ladder with a clean capture is the best course for any ladder that is long enough to run across the board (but not in the case of short ladders running down to the board's edge).
Lynx: Important to remember is that in some joseki, capturing the ladder does *not* mean taking the stone, but rather capturing the stone with a local ladder breaker, such as the keima kakari, keima, attach, underneath hane variation.
Joelr: Are you referring to 4-4 point low approach low extension, contact? I don't see any (non-refuted) ladder variations there. Can someone please embellish?
Uberdude: Probably this one:
The normal move for white to complete the capture of the 2 stones when black makes a ladder breaker is b and not the capture at a. This move can be understood as having more influence and efficiency than the direct capture. It does leave white some threats such as the peep at c, but the judgement of professionals is clearly that this is drawback is minor. A pro game pattern search of GoGoD 2010 edition has 35 hits for b to a mere 5 for a. In fact a was last played in 2005, and the most recent 10 games all have b.
Also, while taking a ladder is honte and may be right in "style" terms, it isn't always 100% needed. Just be very confident in your understanding of the game if you tenuki.
A position with two hanes on the first line can have one more liberty than its dame count.
Example:
and
make two hanes on the first line with sente. Now the Black stones in the corner have 4 liberties.
And Black wins the race to capture.
Korean proverb
White makes a Carpenter's triangle Thanks to the marked stone, the connection underneath at a does not work.
If a play carries a threat so big that the opponent should answer it in gote right away, and it prevents the opponent from making such a threat, you should almost always play it soon. Typically that means now.
A sente-sente (or double-sente) move is a move which is sente for either player. It is always important to grab these moves as soon as possible, because whoever plays them gets points for free - no move is lost by playing a double sente play, but it does give one points.
The simplest sente-sente position is on the left. White can play and
in sente. Compared to a black play (Black 1 at 3 etc.), White has two more points of territory, whereas Black has two fewer, i.e. a total of four points. This is said to be a four-point sente play for both sides. (The actual value of a double sente is a relatively large number.)
The "value" of four points is deceptive. Double sente plays should normally be played as soon as they arise on the board. The question is how large the threats for each player are, compared with other plays on the board.
For example, in this case, if Black does not answer with and
, White can take a large chunk out of Black's territory.
In this diagram (assuming that there is white territory to the left and black to the right), is often a double sente move. If White does not answer, Black makes a huge incursion into White's territory. White can play the same move at 1, threatening to jump into Black's. White answers at
, and Black can also play
and
in sente. White can exchange a for blater.
It is important to play this type of move before the opponent does so: Black has gained six points here compared to a white play at 1, at no cost of moves. Giving two of these, rather common, positions to your opponent already costs over 10 points - which can easily be the difference between win and loss even at moderate levels.
Double sente is relative. It depends on what else is on the board. Every Go position can be categorized as sente, gote, or ambiguous. Any play, whether a sente or gote in the abstract, can be a double sente if the reply when either player makes the first play is larger than anything else on the board. Usually, double sente are played as soon as they arise.[1]
Example (outer stones alive):
This appears in Kano's Yose Dictionary. He says that it is a double sente, but that Black's play has more "necessity". (It threatens White's group.)
Actually, this is a seven-point sente for Black. If Black plays first, we get
The local score is 1.
The original position is a seven-point sente for Black. However, when the ambient temperature drops below 3 points, it is double sente (as a rule). However, Black is unlikely to allow that to happen.
Beware of so-called double sente. For instance, Kano's "Yose Dictionary" gives the following as a two-point double sente (p.30).
After the exchange of -
, White has a one-point sente sequence with
-
. The score is +5 (for Black).
After the exchange of -
, Black has a one-point sente sequence with
-
. The score is +3.
If this is a double sente, then whoever plays it picks up two points (by comparison) for free.
But do not be misled. This is actually a gote play, worth about 3 2/3 points (miai value).
After ,
is a gote play worth about 2 1/4 points. If there are bigger plays on the board, White is unlikely to respond to
.
After ,
is worth slightly more than 3 points.
So if there are plays worth between about 3 2/3 and 3 points elsewhere, Black is unlikely to respond to .
This is a middling gote play. Do not think of it as a double sente.
Also see How Big is the 6 point Double Sente
[1]
Tas: Which is why they actually ought to be considered part of a larger sente or gote sequence, although it might be outside anyone's reading ability.
Bill: Well, the examples on this page have theoretically shorter sequences than the double sente sequences. :)